
 
 

In compliance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons with physical limitations that may tend to restrict access to or participation in 
this meeting should contact the County Administrator’s office (231-779-9453) at least twelve (12) hours prior to the scheduled start of the 
meeting. 

Wexford County 
 

 
Michael Musta, Chair 

 
NOTICE OF MEETING 

The Finance & Appropriations Committee of the Wexford County Board of Commissioners 
will hold a regular meeting on Wednesday, September 23, 2020 beginning at 4:00 p.m. 

in the Commissioners’ Room, Third Floor, 437 E. Division St., Cadillac, Michigan. 
 

TENTATIVE AGENDA 

A. CALL TO ORDER 
B. ROLL CALL 
C. ADDITIONS / DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
D. APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA  
E. APPROVAL OF THE SEPTEMBER 10, 2020, REGULAR MEETING MINUTES ........ 1 
F. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 The Committee welcomes all public input. 
G. AGENDA ITEMS 

1. Approval of Claims (A. Nyman, County Clerk) 
2. Year-to-Date Revenue & Expense Reports - August ............................................ 5 
3. Council on Aging FY 2021 Draft Budget (Kathy Kimmel, Executive Director) ..................... 7 
4. Emergency Management Performance Grant FY 2019 ...................................... 10 
5. Emergency Management Performance Application FY 2020 .............................. 22 
6. RFP Bid Opening – Wex Capital Improvements, HVAC ..................................... 52 
7. Clarification on MERS Contribution (BOC 9/16/20) ................................................... 63 
8. FY 2021 Budget Discussion ................................................................................ 64 
9. Lake St. Server Room AC Unit ............................................................................ 65 
10. Ottawa County Juvenile Detention Center Bed Rental Agreement ..................... 69 
11. Budget Amendment(s) ........................................................................................ 78 

H. CORRESPONDENCE 
I. ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS 
J. PUBLIC COMMENTS 
K. COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
L. CHAIR COMMENTS 
M. ADJOURN 

FINANCE AND APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE 



COUNTY OF WEXFORD 
FINANCE & APPROPRIATIONS COMMITTEE MEETING 

REGULAR MEETING MINUTES 
September 10, 2020 

The meeting was called to order by Chairman Musta at 4:00 p.m. in the Commissioners’ Room of the 
Courthouse.  

Members Present: Mike Musta, Brian Potter, and Gary Taylor 
Members Absent: Julie Theobald 
Also Present: Norma Kijorski, Senior Executive Assistant; Janet Koch, County Administrator; 

Kristi Nottingham, Treasurer; Alaina Nyman, Clerk; Members of the Public 

ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO THE AGENDA 
Added: G.5. Budget Amendment – Beaches Grant 

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA 
A motion was made by Taylor and supported by Potter to approve the agenda, as amended. A vote 
was requested.  All in favor. 

APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES 
A motion was made by Taylor and supported by Potter to approve the August 26, 2020 Regular 
Meeting Minutes.  A vote was requested.  All in favor. 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 
None. 

AGENDA ITEMS 
G.1. Approval of Claims
A motion was made by Potter and supported by Taylor to pay the bills in the amount of
$212,182.10.

Ms. Nyman stated no additional claims were added. 

A vote was called.  All in favor. 

G.2. Year-to-Date Revenue and Expense Reports - July
Ms. Koch denoted the following on the reports:
• Department 191, Elections, is nearly exhausted and a budget amendment will be needed.
• Department’s 265, 266 & 268, are under/over the percent completed for the year due to the way

maintenance for the buildings was budgeted; adjustments are being prepared.
• Department 290, General Services Administration, high percentage is again due to MMRMA being

paid at the beginning of the year.
• Department 426, Emergency Management, has a high percentage of budget used to date due to

employee benefits to health insurance and the purchase of Code Red.

Ms. Nyman reported that Department 191, Elections, had a vendor change at the beginning of the year.  
Additional expenses were incurred due to the change.  A budget amendment will be needed. 

E. 

1



Finance Committee 
Page 2 of 3 
September 10, 2020 

G.3. MERS Payment
A motion was made by Potter and supported by Taylor to forward to the full board for approval
two equal 2020 payments for a total of 7.125% of the 2020 amended General Fund budget for an
additional voluntary contribution to MERS in the surplus division.

Ms. Koch noted that she spoke with Joe Porterfield, Kristi Nottingham and Corinna Hervey about the 
additional payment method.  She stated that the payment will go into a MERS surplus fund.  It will get 
the County fully funded quicker which will aid in making the County fiscally sound.  If the County needs 
to add it to a division, it will have that ability to shift the funding. 

Ms. Nottingham stated that making two payments will ensure the County has maximum flowability with 
revenues and expenditures.  

A vote was called. All in favor. 

G.4. Budget Amendment(s)
A motion was made by Taylor and supported by Potter to forward to the full board for approval
the budget amendment dated 9/16/2020.  A vote was called.  All in favor.

G.5. Budget Amendment – Beaches Grant – ATTACHMENT 1
A motion was made by Potter and supported by Taylor to forward to the full board for approval a
budget amendment submitted by the Drain Commissioner for the Beaches Grant in the amount of
$13,550.  A vote was called.  All in favor.

CORRESPONDENCE 
None. 

ADMINISTRATOR’S COMMENTS 
Ms. Koch, County Administrator, reported the following: 
• A meeting with several City officials is scheduled for next week regarding the proposed Warren

Street process of vacating.
• The Wex HVAC walkthrough was yesterday, Wednesday.  Approximately five companies

attended.  The bid opening is scheduled prior to the next Finance meeting.

PUBLIC COMMENTS   
Mr. Gordie Maxwell, Cadillac commented on the City and the Warren Street abandonment.  Additional 
information regarding approximate incurred costs was shared by Ms. Koch. 

COMMITTEE COMMENTS 
None. 

CHAIR COMMENTS 
None. 

ADJOURN 
A motion to adjourn was made by Taylor and supported by Potter at 4:14 p.m.  A vote was called.  
All in favor.  

2



Finance Committee 
Page 3 of 3 
September 10, 2020 
 
 
___________________________________   __________________________________ 
Michael Musta, Chairman     Norma Kijorski, Recording Secretary 

3



4



REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR WEXFORD COUNTY09/18/2020 10:17 AM
User: NKIJORSKI
DB: Wexford

PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2020
% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.67

% BDGT
USED

AVAILABLE
BALANCE

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)

ACTIVITY FOR
MONTH 08/31/2020

INCREASE (DECREASE)

YTD BALANCE
08/31/2020

NORMAL (ABNORMAL)
2020

AMENDED BUDGETDESCRIPTIONGL NUMBER

Fund 101 - GENERAL FUND
Revenues

51.786,758,026.361,720,767.527,256,615.9614,014,642.32UnclassifiedUNCLASSIFIED

51.786,758,026.361,720,767.527,256,615.9614,014,642.32TOTAL REVENUES

Expenditures
Function: Unclassified

52.0932,359.974,614.5935,177.0367,537.00COMMISSIONERS101
60.81132,680.9925,713.28205,918.01338,599.00CIRCUIT COURT131
59.59263,537.4343,304.94388,637.57652,175.00DISTRICT COURT136
60.78348,468.92104,015.62539,980.08888,449.00FRIEND OF THE COURT141
71.701,004.800.002,545.203,550.00JURY COMMISSION147
60.18253,772.9846,529.92383,462.02637,235.00PROBATE COURT148
41.481,597.69554.801,132.312,730.00PROBATION AND PAROLE151
63.8427,234.325,956.8748,084.6875,319.00CIRCUIT COURT FAMILY COUNS.166
48.27127,436.1215,645.04118,903.88246,340.00PUBLIC DEFENDER168
62.1477,156.0815,452.57126,632.24203,788.32COUNTY ADMINISTRATION172
85.157,991.542,369.9445,808.4653,800.00ELECTIONS191
60.84115,827.0321,573.04179,954.97295,782.00COUNTY CLERK215
58.47182,158.4225,857.72256,431.58438,590.00EQUALIZATION225
62.45186,453.5137,891.67310,092.49496,546.00PROSECUTING ATTORNEY229
61.6519,537.473,495.7431,402.5350,940.00PROS ATTNY CO-OP REIMB230
61.8299,849.2718,664.37161,691.73261,541.00REGISTER OF DEEDS236
7.9639,337.000.003,400.0042,737.00STATE SURVEY & REMONUMENTATION245

61.36129,625.9125,016.90205,825.09335,451.00COUNTY TREASURER253
45.49226,210.4028,520.24188,761.60414,972.00BUILDING AND GROUNDS265
103.76(1,714.34)6,675.2447,314.3445,600.00HUMAN SERVICES BLDG266
95.211,829.104,609.9036,370.9038,200.00DISTRICT HEALTH DEPARTMENT268
61.4363,251.9611,510.18100,748.04164,000.00JAIL - BLDG/GRDS270
82.37517.42286.872,417.582,935.00JAIL - BLDG/GRDS CARMEL ST271
60.992,009.12463.123,140.885,150.00MAINT/STORAGE - BLDG/GRDS272
38.6924,588.443,042.7515,516.5640,105.00DRAIN COMMISSION275
77.7831,994.88112,005.12112,005.12144,000.00DEPT OF AGRICULTURE282
81.98136,594.9727,502.40621,365.03757,960.00GEN SERVICES ADMINISTRATION290
57.931,026,085.40173,478.371,412,999.602,439,085.00SHERIFF301
15.5825,326.320.004,673.6830,000.00SHERIFF COURT SECURITY302
44.6756,255.126,314.9945,416.88101,672.00SECONDARY ROAD PATROL315
18.5020,251.902,390.174,596.1024,848.00MARINE331
51.532,181.221,374.162,318.784,500.00FEDERAL FOREST333
46.3113,555.530.0011,694.4725,250.00SNOWMOBILE334
61.659,739.451,042.4315,656.5525,396.00ORV GRANT335
56.811,180,524.05192,519.161,552,889.952,733,414.00JAIL351
74.9818,691.505,468.6056,016.5074,708.00EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT426
25.5557,063.8213,712.0319,586.1876,650.00SANITARY LANDFILL526
53.58278.52190.13321.48600.00CONTAGIOUS DISEASES605
63.7734,568.055,661.2360,831.9595,400.00MEDICAL EXAMINER648
60.004,000.000.006,000.0010,000.00VETERANS BURIAL681
100.00(23,058.40)16,785.3823,058.400.00FRINGE BENEFITS861

0.0050,000.000.000.0050,000.00CONTINGENCIES890
41.07619,172.8213,149.57431,561.181,050,734.00TRANSFERS965
70.62166,961.274,375.00401,392.73568,354.00APPROPRIATIONS966

58.675,792,907.971,027,734.058,221,734.3514,014,642.32 TOTAL EXPENDITURES
5



09/18/2020 REVENUE AND EXPENDITURE REPORT FOR WEXFORD COUNTY
PERIOD ENDING 08/31/2020

% Fiscal Year Completed: 66.67
YTD BALANCE ACTIVITY FOR AVAILABLE

2020 08/31/2020 MONTH 08/31/2020 BALANCE % BDGT
GL NUMBER DESCRIPTION AMENDED BUDGET NORMAL (ABNORMAL) INCREASE (DECREASE) NORMAL (ABNORMAL) USED

Fund 225 - ANIMAL CONTROL:
TOTAL REVENUES 219,002.00 202,400.04 494.27 16,601.96 92.42
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 218,961.00 121,152.32 11,303.86 97,808.68 55.33

Fund 243 - COURT SECURITY FUND:
TOTAL REVENUES 123,485.00 63,395.79 8,626.98 60,089.21 51.34
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 123,485.00 62,060.27 8,351.31 61,424.73 50.26

Fund 249 - BUILDING INSPECTIONS DEPT.:
TOTAL REVENUES 183,794.00 83,395.00 15,811.60 100,399.00 45.37
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 207,061.00 130,438.14 15,185.76 76,622.86 63.00

Fund 259 - INDIGENT DEFENSE FUND:
TOTAL REVENUES 981,484.00 531,375.42 210,565.52 450,108.58 54.14
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 981,484.00 517,778.38 51,218.69 463,705.62 52.75

Fund 260 - COMMUNITY ALTERNATIVE PROG.:
TOTAL REVENUES 297,521.00 166,346.74 13,978.00 131,174.26 55.91
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 297,520.00 184,744.93 20,705.80 112,775.07 62.09

Fund 261 - 911-WIRELESS:
TOTAL REVENUES 920,000.00 471,873.52 109,408.19 448,126.48 51.29
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 919,358.00 670,517.26 68,567.88 248,840.74 72.93

Fund 292 - CHILD CARE FUND:
TOTAL REVENUES 527,600.00 40,173.80 23,974.16 487,426.20 7.61
TOTAL EXPENDITURES 357,000.00 180,502.66 46,276.46 176,497.34 50.56

6



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 

COMMITTEE:  Finance  

FROM:    Administration 
FOR MEETING DATE: September 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Council on Aging Draft 2021 Budget 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 

The agreement providing for the Council on Aging to administer the Senior Services 
millage requires the BOC to approve their proposed budget before millage monies are 
released. 

The COA’s 2021 proposed budget is attached for consideration and recommendation. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

If the proposed budget is acceptable to the committee, a motion to forward to the full 
board with a recommendation to approve would be appropriate. 

G.3.

7



Wexford County Council on Aging

Annual Consolidated Budget

For the Year Ended December 31, 2021

Item #

Approved 2020 

Budget

2021 Proposed 

Budget AS of 9/8/20 

Revenues

Local Revenues 1,263,934 1,261,260

#1  Millage 990,000 1,028,288

     Personal Property 

Reimbursement - 0
 Contributions 4,000 7,500

#2  Silver Care 51,116 67,545
 Senior Expo 13,100 0

#3  Cost Share 124,330 79,661

#4  Veteran's Home Care 7,752 4,915
       MMAP/MIPPA 30,000 30,000

#5  Veteran's Administration 12,726 12,784

#6  Advertisement 5,820 5,820
 Interest 5,000 5,000

#7  COA Foot Clinics 3,790 3,368

#7  Clinic Foot Care 10,800 10,880

#8  Other Local Revenues 500 500

  SNAG IN/OUT Not Budgeted 5,000 5,000

State Revenues 232,855 247,846

#9  AAA Medicaid Waiver 81,140 61,033

#10  NHC Medicaid Waiver 19,050 45,512

#11  AAA Care Management 43,994 55,297

#12  DHS 53,000 52,992

NLCMH ADC Grant 14,500 14,500
AAA ADC Grant 12,867 12,867

#14  MOW Svc Assmnts 4,704 5,544

 Other State Revenue 3,600 100

#15 Tranfer from Depr. Reserve 7,300 
Transfer from Fund Balance 104,075
Total Revenues 1,504,089 1,613,181

Expenditures

#16a Program Salaries and Wages 850,851 919,096

#16b Executive Wages 63,606 64,875

Social Security Tax 54,541 58,143
Medicare Tax 12,756 13,598

#17 Unemployment Tax 15,163 15,163

#18     Employee Benefits

  Health Insurance 71,395 62,007

  HRA 15,000 5,000
  Retirement Employer 2% 18,601 19,679
  Cell Phone 5,220 5,220

#19

Worker's Compensation 

Insurance 16,955 16,955

#20b Contracted Srvs (Sn Plowing) 35,000 46,000

#20a Contracted Srvs (MOW DB) 7,300 0

#20c Contracted Srvs (Lawn) - 31,955
RFP 94,000

#20d Contracted Srvs (Sr. Compain) 20,910 0

#20e Contracted Srvs (MOW) 20,910 0

#20F Contracted Srvs. (Manton Sr) 25,000 0

#20G Contracted Srvs (Cadillac Sr) 26,000 0 8



#21   Professional  Fees 

  Tasc Claim Fees & Admin 1,480 1,200
  CIC Benefit Fees 1,800 3,000

 Occupational Injury Claims 1,900 1,300

 BCB Audit 7,500 7,500
  Retirement Admin Fees 2,000 1,650
Recruit/Emp Fees 3,000 3,000

Office Supplies 12,600 17,000

#22 Food Supplies 1,200 2,500

#23 Janitorial/Operating Supplies 6,480 15,000
Sr. Expo 8,500 0

#24a Liability Insurance & Bonds 9,959 9,959

#24b Automobile Insurance 1,673 1,673

#25a Telephone & Internet Svc Fees 9,300 9,300

#25b Postage 6,100 7,167

#25c Software Service Fees 15,000 12,000

#28a COA Utilities - Electric 5,874 2,543
COA Utilities - Haring Water 234 234

COA Utilities - Natural Gas 3,000 4,777

COA Utilities - Trash Removal 820 820

#286 Day Break Utilities - Electric 1,250 750
DB Utilities - Water & Sewer 360 400

DB Utilities - Natural Gas 900 1,000
DB Utilities - Trash Srv 300 300

#28c Day Break Automobile Fuel 1,400 1,400

#28d Lease Expense 8,900 8,900

#29a

Day Break Repairs & 

Maintenance 6,000 7,106

#29b

Computer/Office Equip Repairs 

& Maintenance 4,700 9,000

#29c

Indoor Cleaning and 

Maintenance 3,500 3,500

#29d Outdoor Maintenance 8,000 6,000

#30a Dues and Subscriptions 740 500

#30b Marketing and Publicity 2,000 1,900

#30c Bad Debt Expense 1,000 500

#31a Mileage - Homecare & Admin 55,000 45,000

#31b

Community Outreach (Meals & 

Conf.) 1,500 1,200

#31c Continuing Education 5,000 2,500

Staff Training and Recognition 500 500

#32a Depreciation/Equipment 14,110 14,110
    Special Projects 

  Volunteer Transpt (CWTA) 17,300 17,300

   P.E.R.S. & Med Box 4,000 4,000

#32b    Sign Project 500 500
   SNAG (Sr. Apprec Not Budgeted 

item IN/OUT  $5,000 5,000 5,000

#32d Miscellaneous Expenses 4,500 4,500

Cash Reserve 

Account 25,000

Total Expenditures 1,504,088 1,613,181 

Increase(Decrease) in Net 

Assets 0 0 0

9



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 

COMMITTEE:  Finance  

FROM:    Administration 
FOR MEETING DATE: September 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Emergency Management Performance Grant Agreement 

FY 2020 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 

The Emergency Management Performance Grant Agreement for FY 2020 is attached for 
consideration along with Resolution 20-22 supporting the grant.  This grant will cover 
34.83% of the ER Manager’s salary and fringe benefits. 

This grant is advantageous to the County by permitting the County the ability to apply for 
all other grants. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

A motion to forward to the full board the resolution in support of the EMP Grant and the 
grant itself for approval.  

G.4.

10



Minutes of a regular meeting of the Wexford County Board of Commissioners, held at the Wexford County 
Courthouse, 437 E. Division St., Cadillac, Michigan on the seventh day of October 2020 at 4:00 p.m. 

PRESENT: _____________________________________________________________________________ 

ABSENT: _____________________________________________________________________________ 

The following preamble and resolution were offered by Commissioner _______________ and supported by 
Commissioner__________________. 

RESOLUTION NO.  20-22 
APPROVING THE AGREEMENT BETWEEN MICHIGAN DEPARTMENT OF STATE POLICE 

AND WEXFORD COUNTY FOR THE EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT PERFORMANCE GRANT 
(EMPG) AGREEMENT 

BE IT RESOLVED, that the Wexford County Board of Commissioners approves the agreement between the 
Michigan Department of State Police and Wexford County for Contract/Grant No: EMC-2020-EP-00005, 
effective October 1, 2019 through September 30, 2020, on this date of October 7, 2020. 

A ROLL CALL VOTE WAS TAKEN AS FOLLOWS: 

AYES:____________________________________________________________________________________ 

NAYS:____________________________________________________________________________________ 

RESOLUTION DECLARED ADOPTED. 

Gary Taylor, Chairman, Wexford County Board of Commissioners 

Alaina M. Nyman, County Clerk 

STATE OF MICHIGAN ) 
) ss. 

COUNTY OF WEXFORD ) 

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and complete copy of Resolution 20-22 adopted by the County 
Board of Commissioners of Wexford County at a regular meeting held on October 7, 2020, and I further 
certify that public notice of such meeting was given as provided by law. 

_________________________________________________________ 
Alaina M. Nyman, County Clerk    

11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 

COMMITTEE:  Finance  

FROM:    Administration 
FOR MEETING DATE: September 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Emergency Management Performance Grant Application 

FY 2021 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 

The Emergency Management Performance Grant Application for FY 2021 is attached for 
consideration.  This application will cover approximately 34.83% of the ER Manager’s 
salary and fringe benefits. 

This application has various requirements, one being a quarterly report submitted by the 
Emergency Manager Travis Baker.  This quarterly reporting should have language 
included in the application motion to allow the Chairman of the Board to sign the quarterly 
reports on behalf of the County rather than submitting the quarterly report to the BOC for 
approval every quarter. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

A motion to forward the FY 21 EMPG Application to the full board for approval along 
with certifying the Chairman to sign the quarterly reports on behalf of the County. 

G.5.

22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 

TO:    Finance Committee 
FROM:    Administration 
FOR MEETING DATE: September 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Recreation Passport Grant RFP Bid Opening/Results 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 

In December 2019, Michigan’s Department of Natural Resources (DNR) announced that 
Wexford County had been selected for a $95,000 award through the Recreation Passport 
Grant Program. These grant funds will go toward an estimated $130,000 project for 
HVAC system improvements at the Wex. 

Many steps were followed to obtain these funds and the Board approved Resolution 20-
07 DNR Passport Grant was approved on February 19, 2020. There was a March 8, 2020 
deadline to submit the signed agreement to the DNR. 

The next step was to obtain a Prime Professional responsible for the planning services 
necessary for the design and construction of the project. The person is Scott Peedle, 
Licensed Professional Engineer of the State of Michigan. 

The bid opening is scheduled for 2:30 p.m. September 23. The RFP is attached and a 
tabulation of the bids will be provided the day of the meeting. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

To become aware of the RFP specifications and the firms providing bids. The DNR will 
make the final decision according to the DNR Grant specifications. 

G.6.

52



Bid Documents 

Project name: The Wex Capital Improvements 

Project Number: RP19-0079 

Bid Publication Date: Tuesday, September 1, 2020 

Bid Submittal Deadline: Wednesday, September 23, 2020 at 2:30 p.m. 

Submit in person to: 

Or by mail to: 

Site Address: 

Grantee: 

Wexford County 
437 E. Division St. 
Cadillac, MI 49601 

Prime Professional: 

Wexford County Administration Office 

2nd Floor, Wexford County Courthouse 

Wexford County Administration Office 

437 E. Division St. 

Cadillac, MI 49601 

Wexford County Civic Center 
1320 N. Mitchell Street 
Cadillac, MI 49601 

Authorized Representative: 
Janet Koch, County Administrator 
437 E. Division St. 
Cadillac, MI 49601 
231-779-9453 
jkoch@wexfordcounty.org 

,,,, .... ,,,,, 
Scott Peedle, PE 6201052572 
8199 Hagstrom Lane 
Cadillac, MI 49601 

, .. ,, or M1cL''1;-. 
,, .t� •••• •, •• ,-,Ir.. ,,�--

..,,, �' •• •• ••• '1� -;. ft}-/ SCOTT T. • •. � '=.:. 

: : PEEDLE • •• * =
231-388-01 19 I scottpeedle@hotmaiI.com

Mr. Peedle is responsible for the planning services necessary 
for the design and construction of the project. His 
responsibilities include development of project specifications, 
review of project submittals, and general construction 

oversight. 

Table of Contents: 

E * � ENGINEER � ffi E 
•t;,• M •¼-� � •• 1''40-

: � : � � \ 52572 .·
.!,,.
�: ·--,�:··· ····,o��
-· � ........ 

• "'[11 
'-f.�t.-

Z.o

Cover Sheet ............................................................................................................................. Page 1 
Description of Project, Bid Submittal, Bid Opening/Award, General Scope of Work 

Time of Completion, Licensing and Permitting, Mandatory Pre-Bid Site Visit Meeting 
Bid Default, County Liability .......................................................................................... Page 2 

Bid Submittal Requirements .................................................................................................... Page 3 
Questions, Acceptance and Rejection ofBids ......................................................................... Page 4 
Bid Submission Form .............................................................................................................. Page 5 

Bid Documents -The Wex Capital Improvements Page 1 53

jkoch
Rectangle



Bid Documents - The Wex Capital Improvements Page 2 

Description of the Project: 

Wexford County has received a Recreation Passport Grant from Michigan’s Department of Natural 
Resources for an HVAC System Upgrade at the Wexford Civic Center, known locally as the “Wex.” 
The Wex, a County-owned facility, is the only venue in the greater Cadillac area that offers a 20,000 
square foot indoor multi-functional facility, as well as the only ice rink in the area. The non-profit 
Boon Sports Management (BSM) took on management of the facility in 2014. 

BSM developed a capital improvement plan for the aging facility, which identified a new HVAC 
system as a primary need. Providing a new HVAC system to replace the 1970s original units is 
necessary to continue providing quality recreation opportunities during all weather and seasonal 
conditions. 

Therefore, Wexford County is seeking bids from qualified firms, on a competitive basis, for an 
upgrade of the Wexford Civic Center HVAC System. 

1. Bid Submittal:  Bids must be delivered in a sealed envelope that is marked with the bidder’s name
and the words “Wex HVAC System Bid.” Any bid received after 2:30 p.m. on Wednesday,
September 23, 2020 will not be opened. Proposals must be signed by an official authorized to bind
the firm to its provisions.

2. Bid Opening/Award:  Bids will be publicly opened at 3:00 p.m. September 23, 2020, in the 2nd

floor lobby of the Historic Courthouse. A final decision regarding project award by the Wexford
County Board of Commissioners is anticipated on Wednesday, October 7, 2020. The County
reserves the right to postpone the bid opening for its own convenience.

3. General Scope of Work:  Bid responses shall include all charges for delivery, labor, materials,
design, equipment, services, and incidental costs such as permits and disposal fees that are necessary
to complete the project as required. All proposals will remain in effect for at least 120 days to allow
for review/approval by the Wexford County Board of Commissioners and then remain firm for the
length of the contract from date of award by the Board of Commissioners.

4. Time of Completion:  The bid must contain an estimated start date and an estimated completion date
of the project. The estimated project completion date will be a consideration in the awarding of
contract.

5. Licensing and Permitting:  Contractor must hold any appropriate licenses and is responsible for
obtaining the permits necessary to complete the work. The bid must include cost of obtaining such
permits and all labor necessary to complete the project.

6. Mandatory Pre-Bid Site Visit Meeting:  Attendance at the pre-bid site visit is mandatory to be
considered a qualified bidder. Meeting will be held at 1:00 pm on Wednesday, September 9.

7. Bid Default:  In case of default by the bidder or contractor, Wexford County may procure the articles
or services required by this agreement from other sources and hold the successful bidder responsible
for any excess costs.

8. County Liability:  Officers, agents and employees of Wexford County will not, in any manner, be
liable for any loss or damage to any person or property connected to or resulting from any work done
on this project.  In addition, the selected firm agrees to indemnify, defend and save harmless, the
County, its officers, agents and employees from any and all claims and losses accruing or resulting
from the negligent performance of work as described in any agreement that results from these bid
documents. These same standards will apply to subcontractors of the selected firm.  The County will
be relieved from all risks of loss or to equipment or personnel, except when such loss or damage is
due to the fault or negligence of the County.

54



Bid Documents - The Wex Capital Improvements Page 3 

9. Bid Submittal Requirements
9.1. Plans and Specifications: Bids must be submitted using the most recent Plans and

Specifications, which can be viewed on the Wexford County website at 
https://wexfordcounty.org/ 

9.2. Addendums:  Any and all addendums will be placed on the County’s website. To be notified 
of addendums to the bid specifications, contact the County Administration office at 231-779-
9453 or administration@wexfordcounty.org and provide an email address. 

9.3. Proof of Insurance:  The successful bidder agrees to provide proof of insurance as follows: 
9.3.1. Workers Compensation Insurance including Employer’s Liability Coverage, in 

accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan. 
9.3.2. Commercial General Lability Insurance on an “occurrence basis” with limits of 

liability not less than $1 million per occurrence and aggregate. Coverage shall 
include the following extensions: (a) Contractual Liability Coverage; (b) Products 
and Completed Operations Coverage; (c) Independent Contractors Coverage; (d) 
Broad Form General Liability Extensions or equivalent, if not already included. 

9.3.3. Automobile Liability including Michigan No-Fault Coverages, with limits of liability 
not less than $1 million per occurrence, combined single limit for Bodily Injury, and 
Property Damage. Coverage shall include all owned vehicles, all non-owned 
vehicles, and all hired vehicles. 

9.3.4. Additional Insured:  Commercial General Liability and Automobile Liability, as 
described above, shall include an endorsement stating the following shall be 
Additional Insureds:  Wexford County, all elected and appointed officials, all 
employees and volunteers, all boards, commissioners, and/or authorities and board 
members, including employees and volunteers thereof.  It is understood and agreed 
by naming Wexford County as additional insured, coverage afforded is considered to 
be primary and any other insurance Wexford County may have in effect shall be 
considered secondary and/or excess. 

9.3.5. Cancellation Notice:  All policies, as described above, shall include an endorsement 
stating that it is understood and agreed that a ten (10) day notice for non-payment of 
premium is required and a thirty (30) day notice is required for non-renewal, 
reduction, and/or material change, shall be sent to:  County Administrator, Wexford 
County, 437 E. Division St., Cadillac, MI  49601. 

9.3.6. Proof of Insurance Coverage:  The Contractor shall provide Wexford County at the 
time that the contracts are returned by him/her for execution, a Certificate of 
Insurance as well as the required endorsements.   

9.4. Surety Performance Bond:  As required by Michigan law (the Michigan Contractor’s Bond for 
Public Buildings or Works Act, Public Act 213 of 1963), the contractor whose bid is accepted 
must provide a performance bond at its own expense with a company acceptable to the County 
in the full amount (100%) of the award. The bond shall be made payable to Wexford County. 
NOTE:  Performance Bond will only be required if the awarded bid for this project is $50,000 
or greater.  
All bidders shall include a letter from their bonding agent (labeled Exhibit A) and submit it 
with their bid documents, indicating that upon award of the contract, they will be able to secure 
required insurances plus a performance bond and maintenance and guarantee bond. 
The performance bond shall serve as security for the faithful performance of this contract 
including any maintenance or warranty provisions and for the payment of all persons 

55

mailto:administration@wexfordcounty.org


Bid Documents - The Wex Capital Improvements Page 4 

performing labor or furnishing materials in connection with this contract. Premiums for the 
performance bond shall be paid by the contractor.  
If at any time the County shall be dissatisfied with any surety or surety bond or performance 
bond, or if for any other reasons such bond shall cease to be adequate security for the County, 
the contractor shall within ten (10) days after notice from the County to do so, substitute an 
acceptable bond in performance and sum and signed by other sureties which are acceptable to 
the County. The premiums on such substitute bond shall be paid by the contractor. 
The performance bond shall remain in full force and effect during the life of the contract and 
during the term of any warranty or maintenance required by the specifications. The contractor 
may not commence work until the performance bond has been received and approved by the 
County. 

9.5. Surety Payment Bond:  If subcontractors are to be used on the project, Contractor must provide 
a Materials & Labor Payment Bond insuring that the Contractor’s subcontractors will be paid 
according to their subcontract. 

9.6. After a contract has been negotiated and signed by both parties, the project may start 
immediately. 

10. Questions:  Any questions regarding the bid specifications shall be directed to Adam Kerr,
Maintenance Director, at 231-779-9469 or maintenance@wexfordcounty.org.
Questions regarding the bidding documents shall be directed to Janet Koch, County Administrator
and Authorized Representative, at administration@wexfordcounty.org or 231-779-9453.
All questions must be asked before 5:00 pm Thursday, September 17. All questions and
accompanying responses will be tabulated and emailed to those who signed up to receive addenda
(see section 13.1) on Friday, September 18.
Contact with personnel of Wexford County other than the above stated persons regarding these bid
documents will be considered grounds for elimination from the selection process.

11. Acceptance and Rejection of Bids:  The Contractor chosen by Wexford County, and all sub-
contractors, shall not discriminate against any worker, employee, or applicant for employment
because of race, color, religion, height, weight, marital status, national origin, ancestry, sex, age,
(except where requirements as to age is based upon a bona fide occupational qualification), or
disability (that is unrelated to the individual’s ability to perform duties of a particular job or position)
pursuant to 1976 PA 453, as amended, MCL 37.2101 et seq. (Elliot-Larsen Civil Rights Act). In
addition, the Contractor chosen by Wexford County, and all sub-contractors, must comply with all
requirements of 1976 PA 220 (Persons with Disabilities Civil Rights Act), and Executive Directive
2019-09, as amended.
Wexford County reserve the right to reject any or all proposals, or any part thereof, to negotiate
separately with any source whatsoever in any manner necessary to attend to the best interests of the
County, to waive irregularities in any proposal and to accept a proposal which best meets the needs of
the County, irrespective of the bid price.
Wexford County also reserves the right to reduce or eliminate this purchase without prior notice, and
to issue post-bid addendums to clarify or request additional information including pricing.
The undersigned hereby agrees that if the foregoing proposal shall be accepted by County, the
successful bidder will, within ten (10) consecutive calendar days after receiving notice of the
acceptance of such bid proposal, provide proof of insurance and enter into a contract to furnish labor,
equipment, and tools necessary to completely execute the work at the pricing provided in the attached
cost proposal.

56

mailto:maintenance@wexfordcounty.org
mailto:administration@wexfordcounty.org


Bid Documents - The Wex Capital Improvements Page 5 

Wexford County 
BID SUBMISSION FORM 

Project name: The Wex Capital Improvements 
Project Number: RP19-0079 

Bid Submittal Deadline: Wednesday, September 23, 2020 at 2:30 p.m. 

Submit in person to: Wexford County Administration Office 
2nd Floor, Wexford County Courthouse 

Or by mail to: Wexford County Administration Office 
437 E. Division St. 
Cadillac, MI  49601 

1. Wexford Civic Center HVAC Project Bid $ ________________________ 
Includes, but is not limited to, the following: 

• HVAC and structural system design and calculations
• Provision and installation of four (4) 20 ton 460/3 phase rooftop units with 2 stage high

heat, output capacity of 320 MBh
• Provision and installation of economizers, custom curb adaptors, new gas lines, new

electrical writing, and related equipment for new rooftop units
• Provision and installation of new CO sensor, WIFI thermostat controls, and ductwork
• Removal and disposal of existing ceiling heating units
• Removal and disposal of existing exterior and interior A/C units

2. Estimated start date ______________________________ 

Estimated completion date ______________________________ 

3. On-site meeting completed on September 9, 2020 (circle one) ................................................. Yes  /  No 

Contractor Information: 

Company Name_________________________________________  Office phone________________ 

Address_______________________________________________  Cell phone__________________ 

Email _________________________________________________  

____________________________________________ _____________________________________ 
Typed or printed name and title of official authorized Signature of official authorized to bind 
to find the firm to the provisions of the bid documents the firm to the provisions of the bid documents. 

Date ________________________________________ 

Failure to complete this form may be considered grounds for elimination from the selection process. 

57



Site Address: 

Plans and Specifications 
Project name: The Wex Capital Improvements 

Project Number: RP19-0079 

1320 N Mitchell Street 

Cadillac, MI 49601 

Grantee: Wexford County 

437 E. Division St. 

Cadillac, MI 49601 

Authorized 

Representative: Janet Koch, County Administrator 

437 E. Division St. 

Prime 

Professional: 

Table of 

Contents: 

August 14, 2020 

Cadillac, MI 49601 

231-779-9453

jkoch@wexfordcounty.org

Scott Peedle, PE 6201052572 

8199 Hagstrom Lane 

Cadillac, MI 49601 

231-388-0119

scottpeedle@hotmail.com

Mr. Peedle is responsible for the planning 

services necessary for the design and 

construction of the project. His responsibilities 

include development of project specifications, 

review of project submittals, and general 

construction oversight. 

Cover Sheet ............................................ Page 1 

Plan Sheet ............................................... Page 2 

Utility & Permitting Information ........... Page 3 

Bid Specifications ........................... Pages 4 - 5 

Page 1 58

jkoch
Rectangle



August 14, 2020 Page 2 
z

Existing interior and exterior 
A/C units to be removed. 

Two ext. ceiling
heating units to 
be removed. 

Existing
interior & 
exterior A/C 
units to be 
removed. 

Existing interior A/C
units to be removed. 

Four new
rooftop 
units to be 
installed 
(approx. 
location). 

Two existing ceiling heating
units to be removed. 

North 

North

Plan Sheet 

59



August 14, 2020 Page 3 

The Wex Capital Improvements Project Number: RP19-0079 
Utility & Permitting Information 

Utilities 

Electric 
Consumers Energy Co. 
330 Chestnut St.  
Cadillac, MI 49601 
800-477-5050

Natural Gas 
DTE Energy 
1560 Marty Paul St. 
Cadillac, MI 49601 
800-477-4747

Sewer 
Haring Township Utility Department 
515 Bell Ave. 
Cadillac, MI 49601 
231-775-8822

Water 
Haring Township Utility Department 
515 Bell Ave.  
Cadillac, MI 49601 
231-775-8822

Permitting 

The following entity issues building, plumbing, mechanical, and electrical permits for this 
property: 

Wexford County Building Department 
401 North Lake St. 
Cadillac, MI 49601 

Phone: (231) 779-9465, fax: (231) 779-9110
Email: building@wexfordcounty.org 
Hours: Monday-Thursday 8:30 a.m. – 5:00 p.m. 
Closed 12:00 – 1:00 pm. Closed Fridays 

Michigan law requires that 
underground utility lines must 
be flagged BEFORE digging 

begins. Contact Miss Dig 
online, by calling 811, or by 
calling 1-800-482-7171 to 
request a Locate Ticket. 

60



August 14, 2020 Page 4 

The Wex Capital Improvements Project Number: RP19-0079 
Specifications 

1. Equipment and Materials

The following must be provided and installed:

a) Four (4) 20 ton 460/3 phase rooftop units with 2 stage high heat, output capacity of 320 MBh.

b) Units shall be Trane Voyager or approved equivalent.

c) Economizers for each unit.

d) Custom curb adaptors and related equipment for new rooftop units.

e) New CO sensor for the control of the economizers for the area.

f) New WIFI thermostat controls with remote sensors and smoke detectors.

g) New gas lines for each rooftop unit.

h) New electrical wiring for new rooftop units and conduit from facility mechanical room to the
rooftop units: 70 amps of 480/3ph. Install new disconnects at the units with 110 conv. outlets.

i) Steel angle iron for supports under the units to be welded in the ceiling (for weight distribution).
All structural support work shall be approved by a structural engineer. Structural calculations
shall be made available for review prior to authorization to proceed.

j) Duct hangars ductwork with diffusers for all rooftop units.

2. Labor

a) Labor to include installation of curb on the roof for new rooftop units; Installation of welded
supports in building for new rooftop units; Installation of all new rooftop units with gas pipe
and electrical to units; Installation of WIFI thermostats for remote control and monitoring with
thermostats to have remote sensors installed in the electrical room; Installation of one (1) CO
sensor for the area to control the economizers; Installation of gas lines and ductwork with
registers from drops.

b) Labor also to include removal and proper disposal of the existing heating units in the ceiling.

c) Labor is to include removal and proper disposal of existing exterior and interior A/C units.

d) Labor shall also include full system design, commissioning, development of operations and
maintenance manuals, and basic operating and maintenance training to designated personnel as
identified by the County.

3. Warranty

Warranty must be a minimum of (5) five years parts and labor on the compressors and (2) two years
on all other parts.

61



August 14, 2020 Page 5 

4. Notes

a) Construction Submittals:  Technical data sheets and installation instructions shall be provided to
the Prime Professional for review and approval for all materials. No payment will be made for
purchase or installation of any materials for which a submittal has not been approved. Shop
drawings shall be provided as indicated. HVAC system design and calculations shall be the
responsibility of the contractor and shall be performed by a licensed engineer in the State of
Michigan. All design and design calculations shall be submitted to the Prime Professional prior
to the commencement of any work activities. In addition to HVAC system design and
calculations, the contractor will be responsible for providing engineering drawings and
calculations to verify structural capacity of existing roof and/or any structural modifications to
support rooftop units. All engineering items shall be performed by a qualified and licensed
engineer in the State of Michigan.

b) Construction Requirements:  The contractor shall be responsible to repair any County property
damaged or affected by the contractor’s work to match the existing materials and finishes. The
Contractor shall to the extent feasible purchase materials and supplies locally.

c) Contractor must clean job site of all work-related debris.

d) Contractor shall obtain all necessary permits.

e) Per the fully executed project agreement between the County and the Michigan Department of
Natural Resources, all new telephone and electrical wiring within the project area must be
buried.

f) It shall be the responsibility of the contractor to verify existing conditions and to identify all
work elements in order to bid the project accordingly. If any missing elements or deviations are
discovered, they must be brought to the attention of the County’s authorized representative prior
to submitting bid package.

g) Bids will be considered all-inclusive for the work described and no extra payment will be
awarded unless substantial differing site conditions are discovered.

h) Contractor must file a safety plan and must follow Michigan Occupational Safety & Health
Administration and similar applicable regulations.

i) Contractor must follow applicable CDC recommendations, applicable Michigan Executive
Orders, and applicable County policies regarding COVID-19.

62



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 

TO:    Finance Committee 
FROM:    Administration 
FOR MEETING DATE: September 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Clarification on MERS Contribution 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 

On September 16, 2020 the Board of Commissioners approved the following motion: “to 
approve two equal FY 2020 payments for a total of up to 7.125% of the 2020 amended 
General Fund budget for an additional voluntary contribution to MERS in the surplus 
division.” 

When working to implement the Board’s motion, which added fiscal flexibility, we’ve 
realized that the auditors will require clarification regarding the amount and timing of 
both payments. 

The first payment could be for 50% of the originally intended additional contribution and 
be made immediately. The second payment amount could be determined at the second 
regularly scheduled Board meeting of December 16. Funding for both payments would 
come from the general fund’s fund balance. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

A motion to recommend the BOC approve a motion of clarification regarding additional 
voluntary contributions to MERS. 

G.7.

63



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 

TO:    Finance Committee 
FROM:    Administration 
FOR MEETING DATE: September 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: FY 2021 Budget Discussion 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 

As we all know, COVID-19 has impacted every nook and cranny of the County, not the least 
being the County’s budget. Many extra purchases and services have been required, but many 
things have gone unpurchased. Some revenues have been down, others have seen an increase 
and federal and state grant monies could well assist us substantially. 

The latest information from Lansing is that state revenue sharing payments will remain as 
previously expected for their fiscal year 2021. I am attending a MAC webinar on Monday, 
September 21, and expect to have more solid information regarding that at the meeting. 
Regarding county revenue, I have asked Joe Porterfield, Equalization Director, to appear at the 
meeting to provide an update on expectations.  

Regarding expenditures, until we receive County-specific health insurance costs, I will be using 
a 7% increase as that is the industry trend. Wage increases have already been determined by 
previous Board actions for most employees. The annual pension cost is increasing by $202,140. 

With all the above in mind, the following points need clarification for the budget process to run 
smoothly and efficiently: 

• Additional appropriations: Beyond the typical appropriations from the County’s budget to
outside agencies, there have been two requests for new appropriations; Alliance for
Economic Success ($5,000) and Veterans Serving Veterans - Octagon Building ($20,000).

• Additional Assistant Prosecutor: The Prosecuting Attorney has requested an increased
budget to allow for an additional assistant prosecuting attorney. Mr. Elmore is requesting a
$60,625.50 attorney salary with accompanying benefits, which would range from $16,570
to $30,430 depending on the current health insurance options available to employees.

• Acceptable final budget: As noted at previous meetings, the County has a solid fiscally
responsible history of underbudgeting revenues and overbudgeting expenditures. This has
resulted in a long history of contributing to the general fund balance year after year.
However, future capital expenditures are a certainty, and a perfectly balanced budget can
result with a neglect of these obligations. Corinna Hervey, financial advisor, has stated that
a small overage of budgeted expenditures over revenues, which results in a budgeted use of
fund balance to balance, is a common budgeting practice which is fiscally sound.

RECOMMENDATION: 
Provide viable direction to the County Administrator regarding the above bullet points. 

G.8.

64



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 

TO:    Finance Committee 
FROM:    Administration 
FOR MEETING DATE: September 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Lake Street Server Room AC Unit 

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 

Both IT Right and Joe Porterfield, our Equalization Director who also serves as on-site IT 
assistance, have stated that replacement of the air conditioning unit in the Lake Street 
server room should be a priority. 

The unit has failed a number of times, and in spite of repairs, future failures are almost a 
guarantee due to the fact that it is well past its expected life span. A failure has a potential 
for dire consequences to the equipment in the server room. That equipment includes 
expensive telecommunications equipment for the entire building, as well as expensive 
network servers. 

Per policy, three quotes are required for a project of this size. Adam Kerr, Maintenance 
Director, has obtained those quotes, which are attached. Though this project is not 
budgeted, funds in line item 101-890-999.10 Contingencies are available. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

A motion to recommend the BOC approve the replacement of the air conditioner in the 
Lake Street server room. 

G.9.

65



66



67



68



BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS COMMITTEE AGENDA ITEM 

TO:    Finance Committee 
FROM:    Administration 
FOR MEETING DATE: September 23, 2020 
SUBJECT: Ottawa County Juvenile Bed Rental Agreement  

SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED: 

An agreement between Ottawa County and Wexford County for juvenile detention center 
bed rental is attached for consideration.  The agreement is for three years, beginning on 
October 1, 2020.   

There are several levels of compensation which are outlined on page 4. 

RECOMMENDATION: 

Administration recommends the Finance Committee forward to the full board for 
approval the agreement with Ottawa County. 

G.10.

69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



10/7/2020

Wexford County Board of Commissioners
Amendments to the 2020 Budget

Adj # Acct Acct Description Revenue Expense a.
20201001 249.000.699.00 Appropriate Fund Balance 500$              

249.000.727.00 Office Supplies 500$            

20201002 101.265.800.00 Contracted Services - B&G (80,300)$      b.
101.266.800.00 Contracted Services -Lk. St. 46,900$       
101.268.800.00 Contracted Services -DHD#10 33,400$       

Under budgeted office supply line item.

Courthouse, Lk. St. and DHD#10 were budgeted under the Courthouse.  Splitting out 
the three costs will give a clearer budget for 2021.

G.11.

78


	E. Draft Finance Minutes-September 10
	G.2. R&E 8-2020 GL
	Book2.pdf
	RevenueandExpenditureReport


	G.3. COA 2020 Budget
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	G.3.a. 2020 Calendarized Budget Compare to 2021 to County
	G.4. EMPG FY 2019
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	G.4.a 20-22 EMPG Grant FY 20
	G.4.b. EMPGrant FY 2019
	G.5. EMPG Application FY 21
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	G.5.a. EMPG Application FY 2020
	G.6. Passport Grant RFP Bid Results for the Wex HVAC
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	G.6.a. Bid documents and Plans-Specs
	G.7. Clarification on MERS Contribution
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	G.8. FY 2021 Budget Discussion
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:
	RECOMMENDATION:

	G.9. Lk. St. Server room AC
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	G.9.a. Three Quotes for Lake St. Server Room AC
	G.10 Ottawa County Bed Rental Agreement 10-1-2020
	SUMMARY OF ITEM TO BE PRESENTED:

	G.10.a. Ottawa County Bed Rental Agreement 10-1-2020
	G.11. Budget Amendments 09-23-20 Finance
	10_07_20




